Pecyn Dogfennau





Dyddiad: Dydd Gwener, 23 Mehefin 2023

Amser: 10.00 am

Lleoliad: Hybrid Meeting

At: Cynghorwyr: P Hourahine (Cadeirydd), M Al-Nuaimi, M Evans, L James, C Baker-Westhead, P Bright, B Davies and G Horton

Eitem

Wardiau Dan Sylw

- 1 <u>Ymddiheuriadau</u>
- 2 Datganiadau o ddiddordeb
- 3 <u>Cofnodion y Cyfarfod Diwethaf</u> (Tudalennau 3 8)
- 4 Adroddiad Blynyddol yr laith Gymraeg (Tudalennau 9 44)
- 5 <u>Casgliad Adroddiadau Pwyllgorau</u> Ar ôl cwblhau adroddiadau'r Pwyllgor, gofynnir i'r Pwyllgor ffurfioli ei gasgliadau, ei argymhellion a'i sylwadau ar eitemau blaenorol i'w gweithredu.
- 6 <u>Adroddiad Cynghorydd Craffu</u> (Tudalennau 45 54)
 - a) Camau Gweithredu'n Codi (Atodiad 1)
 - b) Rhaglen Gwaith i'r Dyfodol (**Atodiad 2**)
- 7 <u>Digwyddiad Byw</u> <u>To watch the Live Event, please click here.</u>

Person cyswllt: Samantha Schanzer, Cynghorydd Craffu Ffôn: 01633 656656 E-bost:Scrutiny@newport.gov.uk Dyddiad cyhoeddi: Dydd Gwener, 16 Mehefin 2023 Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn

Eitem Agenda 3

Draft Minutes



Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Date: 2nd June 2022

Time: 10am

Venue: Microsoft Teams Meeting / Committee Room 1

Present: Councillors Gavin Horton, P Hourahine(chair), M Al-Nuaimi, P Bright, C Baker-Westhead, Lauren James, M Evans, B Davies.

Rhys Cornwall (Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate), Janice Dent (Policy and Partnership Manager), Tracy Mckim (Head of People, Policy and Transformation), Shaun Powell (Transformation and Intelligence Manager), Yvonne Forsey (Cabinet Member for Climate Change).

Finn Madell (Head of Corporate Safeguarding), Mary Ryan (Head of Adult Services), Natalie Poyner (Head of Children's Services), Sally Ann Jenkins (Strategic Director for Social Services).

Neil Barnett (Scrutiny Advisor), Taylor Strange (Governance Support Officer).

1. Apologies

Councillors Claire Baker-Westhead and the Cabinet Members for Social Services (Job Share), Councillors Stephen Marshall and Jason Hughes.

2. Declarations of interests

None.

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 28th April 2023

The Committee noted that in a prior meeting they had requested the University of South Wales be contacted in order to attend the Scrutiny Committee however there had still been no confirmation whether this had been addressed.

• The Scrutiny Advisor confirmed it would be followed up again.

The minutes of the previous meeting held **28th April 2023** were **accepted as a true and accurate record**.

4. Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy

The report was presented by the Head of Environment and Public Protection and the Service Manager for Climate Change.

Questions:

The Committee commended the report and queried what the definitive figure for charging ports in Newport.

- The Service Manager for Climate Change noted there was a crowdsourced website as well as a government website that tracked this information but there may be discrepancies between those.
- They Service Manager informed Committee that the Council does also keep track via their website.

The Committee queried the information in the report that highlighted renting electric cars by the hour.

• The Service Manager for Climate Change noted this hasn't been addressed as a specific aim of the strategy but to consider the viability of electric car clubs.

The Committee asked if Officers were doing anything to get a definitive answer on the amount of charging ports in Newport.

• The Service Manager for Climate Change noted this can be taken away as an action point.

The Committee asked whether there was a statutory duty to provide electric charging points.

• The Service Manager for Climate Change informed the Committee that there is no statutory requirement.

The Committee asked whether there is a duty for private companies to provide electric charging ports.

- The Service Manager for Climate Change highlighted that the total number of charging ports also include private ports installed and noted the private companies work with retail outlets.
- The Service Manager for Climate Change also raised that the private sector hasn't felt the need to move into the public realm, especially with on street charging.

The Committee queried the process wherein residents request an electric charging port on their road.

- The Service Manager for Climate Change informed the Committee that the Council keep a record of anyone whose requested a charging port and uses that information to see where the demand lies.
- The Service Manager for Climate Change noted that they don't deal with specific properties and highlighted that residents can't install their own charger outside their property if it would then fall onto a public road or highway.

The Committee asked what integration had occurred between electric charging points and the electricity industry.

• The Service Manager for Climate Change noted that with each charging port that is installed, the local grid is contacted in order to see if the location is viable or whether it has to be slower charging in order as to not cause any issues.

The Committee questioned how Officers will ensure the consultation would reach a wide audience as well as the metrics for measuring how successful it will be.

• The Head of People, Policy and Transformation noted that a variety of forums are used to spread to the consultation such as social media, via the free bus Wi-Fi. The feedback from any successful consultation surveys would then be analysed.

The Committee asked whether there were any measures to increase the use of electric vehicles amongst taxi drivers.

• The Service Manager for Climate Change noted studies have been undertaken by Cardiff Council, as well as highlighting separate work will need to occur to support low emission taxis.

The Committee asked how residents would be encouraged to buy electric vehicles and how would the benefits of electric vehicles be highlighted.

- The Service Manager for Climate Change stated the goal is to make infrastructure in the area more viable and inform the public of this to highlight the benefits.
- The Service Manager for Climate Change further noted that it was currently cheaper to run electric vehicles than petrol or diesel.

The Committee asked for improved clarification on the names of different forms of charging ports.

• The Service Manager for Climate Change noted this can be added in future reports.

The Committee asked where the 90,000 electric cars by 2040 figure comes from.

• The Service Manager for Climate Change noted these are based of the Department for Transport figures, with the data on electric cars based on national research based on predicted uptake.

The Committee asked how many vehicles are in Newport.

• The Service Manager for Climate Change was unsure of any vehicle numbers that weren't specifically cars.

Comments and Recommendations:

The Committee asked for further information as to whether air quality was improving through the increase in electric vehicles.

The Committee asked for a definitive answer on the number of charging ports within Newport.

The Committee felt that it would be beneficial for issues raised in reports to be highlighted in the following year's report to feedback progress and resolutions.

The Committee were content with the report.

5. Consultation Update

It was agreed that this item would be taken earlier in the agenda.

Questions:

The Committee queried the demographics and their responses that the survey collected as responses were varied on topics such as Oaklands.

Tudalen 5

- The Head of People Policy and Transformation highlighted that responses had more focus on issues that impacted everyone rather than had an impact on a smaller of number of people. The response trends for Oaklands were similar across social services items that were on the consultation.
- The Policy and Partnership Manager highlighted that there were responses outside of the consultation survey in relation to the mentioned issues, as it was further explained that the survey did not reflect all the responses on the consultation topics.
- The Committee asked for all responses to be reflected in the total responses received rather than consultation survey responses only.

The Committee highlighted that there was no option for an email address to be added in the survey so that other surveys could be sent out to the respondent.

• The Head of People Policy and Transformation noted that this could be looked at.

The Committee asked how Officers were able to get a larger response pool for the next consultation.

- The Head of People Policy and Transformation informed Committee that how to increase the range, responses and focus to surveys were always under review.
- The Head of People Policy and Transformation also noted there is a balance to be struck between gaining a wide range of responses and allowing the public the choice of whether to give responses.
- The Policy and Partnership Manager highlighted giving notice before events within the city alongside ward meetings could help gain more responses especially face-to-face.
- The Strategic Director noted that there needs to be balance between responses and quality of responses, which may be worth putting into the work programme.

The Committee noted the quality of responses are important such as in this recent budget consultation, the voice of the unions and fairness commission were important.

The Committee felt the consultation was an improvement this year.

The Committee would like "other responses" including emails, meeting and calls etc included in the tally of responses.

The Committee highlighted there being no option to leave email address for future surveys.

6. Corporate Safeguarding Annual Report

The report was presented by the Strategic Director for Social Services and the Head of Corporate Safeguarding.

Questions:

The Committee asked what would be done with the real time data that the Officers had collected.

• The Head of Corporate Safeguarding informed the Committee that the data can be used to keep better track of progress through individual and up to date spreadsheets.

The Committee felt like having two systems of measuring data was confusing and asked for one to be removed.

The Committee noted the importance of safeguarding. The Committee highlighted that the training platform was not user friendly and wondered if this system was still used.

• The Head of Corporate Safeguarding informed Committee that training procedures from Wales Safeguarding would make things more straightforward but it had only been introduced in November 2022.

The Committee asked that the training platform be improved to be more functional.

- The Head of Adult Services noted training is wide ranging depending on the role
- The Strategic Director highlighted the meta compliance training can now indicate when training hasn't been done

The Committee highlighted that the Metropolitan Police are stepping away from mental health work and asked whether there would be any impact on Newport's services as a result.

- The Head of Adult Services highlighted the work the Crisis Mental Health team does and noted Gwent was better able to deal with situations from an adult services and mental health services perspective.
- The Head of Adult Services further reiterated that Newport would be okay if a similar occurrence happened.
- The Head of Children's Services detailed that the police are integrated into the service such as through joint services and are engaged in the safeguarding work.

Comments and Recommendations:

The Committee would like the data to be clear as the information in one section was misleading

The Committee would like recommendation to IT to make the training courses a lot simpler.

The Committee felt that it would be beneficial for issues raised in reports to be highlighted in the following year's report to feedback progress and resolutions.

The Committee were content with the work but would like a focus on outcomes.

7. Conclusion of Committee Reports

The Committee requested that conclusions be recorded at the end of each agenda item.

8. Scrutiny Advisor reports

Action Sheet

The Scrutiny Advisor agreed to further follow up regarding the university.

Forward Work Programme

The Committee noted looking at budget consultation as an agenda item for a meeting in October.

The Scrutiny Advisor agreed to query whether the Air Quality Report could be brought to the next meeting in order to make the agenda a two-item agenda.

Scrutiny Topic Referral

The Scrutiny Advisor presented this item and explained the process to the Committee.

Tudalen 7

The referrer noted several failed bids for levelling up as well as highlighting that other Councils have been successful in their bids where Newport had not been and therefore wanted this to be brought to Scrutiny to provide comments and recommendations to increase chances of success.

The referrer noted that it fit the criteria for Scrutiny Committees as the focus was how to improve submissions and bids.

The referrer felt like this was not a political issue.

The referrer asked whether the failed bids had any feedback.

• The Strategic Director noted this can be looked at, and also highlighted that the decision is a Committee decision.

The Members of the Committee gave their comments on the proposed referral.

The referrer asked for a framework for how bids are created from inception.

The referrer asked that the report would include the bids and the feedback and ways to assist to make bids more likely to succeed.

The referrer would not like the report to be information only.

The referrer moved to have the report brought to the next Committee on the failed "levelling up" bids.

The Committee clarified that the Committee could make the decision to bring the item and clarified what they wanted.

• The Strategic Director confirmed the situation that the Committee can determine whether they want the motion and will confirm the legal process after the meeting.

The Committee took a vote to ascertain whether the item would be brought to Scrutiny. The vote was not carried to have the item brought to a Scrutiny Committee with three votes for, two votes against, and two abstentions.

The Scrutiny Advisor confirmed the date of the next meeting to be 23rd June 2023 at 10am.

Eitem Agenda 4

Scrutiny Report



Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Part 1

Date: June 2023

Subject Annual Welsh Language Monitoring Report 2022 - 23

Author Policy and Partnership Manager

The following people have been invited to attend for this item:

Invitee:	Area / Role / Subject
Cllr Dimitri Batrouni	Cabinet Member for Organisational Transformation
Tracey McKim	Head of People, Policy & Transformation
Janice Dent	Policy and Partnership Manager
Joseph Chambers	Welsh Language Policy Officer

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations

1 Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked

- 1. Whether the Annual Report reflects a true and fair account of the council's Welsh language performance over the period in question 2022 2023.
- 2. Whether the Annual Report highlights the ongoing commitment to the Welsh language effectively and focuses on appropriate successes and highlights successes and good work
- 3. Whether the Annual Report highlights the ongoing commitment to the Welsh language effectively and focuses on appropriate areas for development
- 4. Whether it wishes to provide comment and recommendations on the Annual Report to Cabinet

2 Context

Background

- 2.1 The Council is required to report annually on its progress in complying with the Welsh Language Standards under the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011.
- 2.2 The annual report has been prepared in accordance with Welsh Language Standards 158, 164 and 170. It will highlight how Newport City Council has complied with the Welsh Language Standards, which were imposed on the authority by the Welsh Language Commissioner, set out in Newport City Council's Compliance Notice.
- 2.3 The statutory deadline for publishing the annual report is 30th June 2023 on the council's website, with relevant notification and advertising of publication via relevant channels, including social media.
- 2.4 This report covers the seventh year of implementing the Welsh Language Standards following the imposition of the Compliance Notice in March 2016. The report provides an overview of the Council's progress in meeting the Welsh Language Standards and a generic overview of Welsh language performance.
- 2.5 As well as outlining the authority's general compliance, this report also contains the specific information required to be published annually by the Standards, including the number of complaints we have received, the Welsh language levels of our staff and the level of Welsh we require on all vacant and new posts we have advertised during the financial year.
- 2.6 Following Scrutiny, this report will go to Cabinet and Council.

Previous Consideration of this item

- 2.2 The Welsh Language Annual Report was presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee on the <u>24th June 2022.</u>
- 2.3 The report then went to Cabinet on the <u>13th July 2022</u> and Council on the <u>19th July 2022</u>.

3 Information Submitted to the Committee

- 3.1 Attached at **Appendix 1** is the Welsh Language Monitoring Annual Report 2022/23.
- 3.2 This report includes:
 - Legislative context which details which Standards the report has been prepared in accordance with and what information must be included in the report.
 - An introduction that gives a summary of the report, including the context in which the data has been collected and challenges and achievements.
 - Key developments which include the Welsh Language Promotion Officer post, Welsh in the Community grants with detailed case studies included at Appendix 1 at the end of the report, policies and strategies, promoting bilingual education and employment and skills.
 - Monitoring information that presents data on how new vacancies are posted.
 - Complaints that have been received, their status and outcomes.
 - Training that has been offered and delivered to staff.

Tudalen 10

- A breakdown of Welsh language skills amongst staff with data.
- Overview of work against Standards, including service delivery standards, policy making standards, operational standards, promotion standards, record keeping standards and performance monitoring.
- Looking Forward, which includes information on current and newly identified priorities.
- 3.3 At the end of the report is an appendix which contains feedback from some of the projects which received Welsh in the Community grants.

4. Suggested Areas of Focus

4.1 **Role of the Committee**

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

- Consider and make comment on the content of the Annual Report and key achievements as outlined
- Consider and determine if the drafted and published Welsh language related strategies and policies are in line with the Council's vision for the Welsh language and meet the necessary statutory obligations
- Determine whether the content of the report is a true reflection of the council's Welsh language performance in 2022-2023
- Conclusions:
 - What was the overall conclusion on the information contained within the report?
 - Is the Committee satisfied that it has had all of the relevant information to base a conclusion on the quality of the Annual Report?
 - Do any areas require a more in-depth review by the Committee?
 - Do the Committee wish to make any Comments / Recommendations to the Cabinet?

Suggested Lines of Enquiry

- 4.2 The Committee may wish to consider:
 - How progress of compliance against the Welsh language standards is monitored
 - Is the report a fair and honest reflection of current performance
 - Whether all staff members, senior management and relevant stakeholders are effectively engaged effectively to deliver against the Welsh Language Standards

4.3 Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act

The report covers the work undertaken with the Right Skills Board, stakeholders and partners to raise awareness of the Welsh language across all of Newport's diverse communities. The key themes and actions in the report underpin them and balance short term needs with the delivery of medium to long-term solutions.

It identifies key successes and challenges for the Welsh language in Newport and shows how the council has worked towards compliance with the Welsh language standards and promoted Welsh across the diverse communities of Newport increasing the visibility of the language across the city.

Tudalen 11

Highlighting the key achievements, development of new policies and monitoring performances across the council will help the achieve a number of goals and targets and will contribute to the Wellbeing Goals of a prosperous Wales, a more equal Wales, a Wales of cohesive communities and a Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language.

5 Ways of Working	Types of Questions to consider:
Long-term The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the	What consideration have you given to the long term trends that could affect your proposal or; how could your proposal impact these trends?
ability to also meet long-term needs.	How will the needs of your service users potentially change in the future?
Prevention Prevent problems occurring or getting	What is the objective (or the desired outcome) of this proposal?
worse.	How are you addressing these issues to prevent a future problem?
	How have the decisions, so far, come about? What alternatives were considered?
Integration Considering how public bodies' wellbeing objectives may impact upon each of the well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies.	Are there any other organisations providing similar / complementary services?
	Have you consulted with the health board, third sector, emergency services, businesses and anyone else you think might be impacted?
	What practical steps will you take to integrate your project with existing plans and strategies of other public organisations to help us all contribute fully to the seven national well-being goals?
Collaboration Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the	Who have you been working with? Why? Who have you collaborated with in finding out more about this problem and potential solutions?
organisation itself).	How are you co-working with other sectors?
	How are you using the knowledge / information / good practice of others to inform / influence the Council's work?
Involvement The importance of involving people with	How have you involved the people who are being impacted by this decision?
an interest in achieving the well-being goals, and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the	How have you taken into account the diverse communities in your decision making?
body serves.	How have you used different / alternative methods to reach people and involve them?

How will you communicate the outcome of your decision?
--

Section B – Supporting Information

5 Links to Council Policies and Priorities

Well-being Objective	1 – Economy, Education and Skills	2 – Newport's Environment and Infrastructure	3 – Preventative and Equitable Community and Social Care	4 – An Inclusive, Fair and Sustainable Council
Aims:	Newport is a thriving and growing city that offers excellent education and aspires to provide opportunities for all.	A city that seeks to protect and enhance our environment whilst reducing our carbon footprint and preparing for a sustainable and digital future.	Newport is a supportive city where communities and care are at the heart of what we do.	Newport City Council is an inclusive organisation that places social value, fairness and sustainability at its core.

- 5.1 The report has strong links to Wellbeing Objective 1 Economy, Education and Skills and Wellbeing Objective 4 An Inclusive, Fair and Sustainable Council.
- 5.2 The report shows how the council's vision for the people of Newport to "see, hear, learn, use and love the Welsh language" fits with creating a modernised workforce as set out in the Corporate Plan and how activities help maximise opportunities to develop our Welsh speaking workforce.
- 5.3 The report also shows how the council, in addition to complying with the Standards, is through the additional work with the Welsh language is contributing to Welsh Government's Strategy, <u>Cymraeg 2050: A million Welsh speakers</u> which sets out a vision for achieving 1 million Welsh speakers by the year 2050.
- 5.4 Delivery of the Welsh Language Skill Policy will aid the council increasing its capacity and capability of complying with the Welsh Language Standards, help create a modernised council, improve skills and create employment opportunities.
- 5.5. Complying with the Standards, implementing the 5 Year Strategy and supporting deliver of the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan will help create a Wales of, *"vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language."*

6 Background Papers

- The Essentials Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)
- Corporate Plan
- Public Sector Equality Duty
- Socio-economic Duty Guidance
- <u>Newport's Welsh Language Standards</u>
- <u>Newport's Implementation Plan</u>
- Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2022-2032
- <u>5 Year Strategy 2022 2027</u>

Welsh Language Skills Policy

Report Completed: June 2023



Welsh Language Annual Monitoring Report 2022-2023 Newport City Council

Mae'r ddogfen hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg. This document is also available in Welsh.

Contents

Foreword by Cabinet Member for Organisational Transformation Foreword by the Chief Executive

- 1. Legislative Context
- 2. Summary
- 3. Key developments
- 4. Monitoring
- 5. Complaints
- 6. Training
- 7. Overview of work against Standards
- 8. Looking forward

1. Legislative Context

This annual report has been prepared in accordance with Welsh Language Standards 158, 164 and 170, and will highlight how Newport City Council has complied with the Welsh Language Standards which were imposed on the authority by the Welsh Language Commissioner, set out in <u>Newport City</u> <u>Council's Compliance Notice</u>.

As well as outlining the authority's general compliance, this report also contains the specific information required by the Standards to be published annually. This includes data on the number of complaints we have received, the Welsh language levels of our staff, the training we offer through the medium of Welsh, and the level of Welsh we require on all vacant and new posts we have advertised during the financial year.

To support our work against the Council's Welsh language compliance notice, Newport City Council has developed a <u>5-year Welsh Language Promotional Strategy</u>. This strategy reflects Newport as a Welsh city with rich multicultural and multilingual communities. It brings together exciting Welsh language work across a range of areas and focuses on growing the range of partners and stakeholders who are engaging with the Welsh language; driving and focussing our energies to raise the profile of the Welsh language across the city.

2. Summary

This year, the Council has adjusted to the changing situation with regards to COVID restrictions. Consequently, we have been able to make significant positive changes in the way we engage with staff and communities across Newport. The Council has adapted to new ways of working and has continued to deliver services to our citizens.

As the world has opened up once again, we have strived to work flexibly and reassess priorities. We have redeployed resources according to the new societal norms. We have worked closely with the Welsh Language Commissioner on these changes whilst returning to providing optimum bilingual services in the city.

With recent previous restrictions related to face-to-face engagement lifting significantly this year, it has enabled us to refocus our energies and work to continue to improve the promotion of the Welsh language across our communities in a direct and meaningful way.

We have effectively engaged with Newport's communities to co-produce a number of resources, reaching out and connecting with key stakeholders who have helped shape our messaging around Welsh language rights and how to access them. We were able to continue to work with key partners to evaluate the Welsh in the Community Grant scheme to support activities across Newport in promoting the Welsh language.

The Council has increased engagement through our promotion work in the city to raise awareness of rights, access to services and celebrate our diverse Welshness. We have developed resources for campaigns throughout the year with communities in Newport, which featured children, young people, parents and key partner agencies.

We were able to build on the previous year's '<u>Many faces of Welsh-ness</u>' campaign further, and work with a local service to produce a series of short films to celebrate the rich diversity of Newport

and its Welsh language speaking communities. This exciting project is expanding on the work around Welsh identity and inclusiveness across the city.

Not only have we been able to engage with our partners in new and innovative ways, but we have continued to reflect on our internal processes and adapt to new ways of working. Engagement with staff and promotion of the Welsh language within our workforce have also continued to be another top priority for the Council. New weekly informal learning opportunities for staff to join lunch time "Sgwrsio Dros Ginio" hybrid sessions have afforded learners and accomplished speakers alike the ability to use their Welsh language skills that they have developed. In doing so, increasing their confidence and language skills even further. This has ensured that the Welsh language has become an important part of the colourful tapestry of working within the organisation.

The <u>Welsh Language Standards</u> provide Newport City Council with a framework to work towards the Welsh Government's aspiration of delivering bilingual public services. During the year, we continued to revisit and develop the <u>Welsh in Education Strategic Plan</u> (WESP) and to implement the <u>5 Year</u> <u>Promotional Strategy</u> that informs policy, plans and work programmes across the Council to help achieve Welsh Government's <u>Cymraeg 2050</u> Strategy. These documents are also published on the Council's <u>website</u>.

The Council's Welsh language officer is supported by the Welsh Language Implementation group (WLIG), whose role it is to develop the use of the Welsh language and support compliance with the Welsh language Standards 2015 under the Welsh Language Measure 2011. WLIG continues to meet every 3 months to mainstream Welsh language in employment, service delivery and partnership work. WLIG reviews progress against the Welsh Language objective including the WESP and the Welsh Government's '<u>More than Just Words'</u> Strategy for Welsh in health, social services and social care.

This annual report provides updates on positive progress made this year, as well as identifying areas for continued development. Despite the reality of increasing costs and financial pressures as we move forward, Newport City Council continues to invest in the Welsh language, both to support internal compliance with standards, and facilitate partnership and community initiatives. Our Welsh language work also continues to be supported by an Elected Member Champion.

3. Key Developments

Welsh Language Promotion Officer

As noted in last year's report, the Council had established a temporary role to develop community engagement, this continued until Autumn 2022. The remit included engagement with Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic communities to promote Welsh medium education and the promotion of Welsh medium education in general. The role also included the promotion of Welsh in general to both staff and residents of Newport.

Our officer, working closely with schools and community stakeholders, developed a Promotion Plan that aligned with the outcomes of the WESP and general education targets. They played a key part in developing the governance and monitoring of the plan during this financial year.

In 2022, this plan became an integral part of the WESP and now features as Outcomes 5 and 7 of this plan and it is the focus of the WESP subgroups Tyfu/Grow and Sustain/ Cynnal. This promotion work is overseen by key partners within education across the city.

Assisting the four Welsh medium school Headteachers and a project manager, the officer developed several workshops and resources to be uploaded to Hwb. Spearheaded by the Welsh Government, Hwb provides bilingual, digital services to all maintained schools to support teaching and learning through the Curriculum for Wales. This project helped pupils develop their skills following the education they missed during the lockdowns of the pandemic.

Internally, the officer supported promotional activities for staff, including a Shwmae/ Su'mae film in September and the delivery of Welsh Language Awareness sessions for the Council's workforce.

Welsh in the Community Grants

As detailed in <u>last year's report</u>, the Council made funding available to support local community groups, organisations, and individuals to promote, facilitate and increase the use of the Welsh language across Newport. The grants were available to projects who wished to develop interventions that would:

- Promote the use of Welsh in the community
- Increase the use of Welsh in social and non-educational environments.
- Increase the visibility of Welsh in Newport
- Support Welsh speakers and learners across the city to use, practice and develop their skills.

The funding available was for a variety of spends, and could include but was not limited to:

- Purchase of supporting materials to enhance communications or widen its reach
- Covering the costs of an event or activity in the local community.
- Purchase of new equipment and that will promote and support the use of the Welsh language
- Costs associated with developing support materials and networks.

This work continued throughout 2022/2023 and projects that accessed the grant scheme promoted the Welsh language across a diverse range of the city's communities. A synopsis of some of the positive outcomes these projects achieved can be found in Appendix one

Policies & Strategies

Over the past 12 months, the council successfully published several new Welsh language related strategies and policies.

Corporate Plan 2022-27

In November 2022, Newport City Council approved its new <u>Corporate Plan 2022-27</u> to deliver 'an Ambitious, Fairer and Greener Newport for everyone'. Newport's Corporate Plan recognises the important role Welsh has to our communities, education and businesses over the next five years and is aligned with the Well-being of Future Generations Act and Welsh Language Standards. In the development of the Corporate Plan, we also aligned the Corporate Plan with the goals of the

Council's Welsh Language Strategy and Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP). More specifically we have the following objectives and sub-objectives:

- Well-being Objective 1 (Economy, Education, Skills) Increase the number of Welsh speakers in Newport by improving access to Welsh education, supporting businesses and promoting the Welsh language.
- Well-being Objective 4 (an Inclusive, Fair and Sustainable Council) Become an inclusive organisation that represents the citizens of Newport, providing equitable opportunity for people to succeed and places the citizen at the centre of decision making.

Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP)

The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2022-2032, was supported by the Welsh language officer and Welsh language promotion officer through engagement events with a range of Welsh Education Forum (WEF) members. The plan was adopted by full council and approved by the Welsh Government during this year.

Welsh Education Promotional Plan

The Welsh Language Promotion Officer finalised a promotional plan to help deliver the outcomes listed in the WESP. This promotion plan included a list of activities the council and stakeholders undertook to promote Welsh medium education across Newport. This promotion plan has now been included in the WESP and is overseen by all key partners who feed into the WESP subgroups Tyfu/Grow and Cynnal/ Sustain. Input from stakeholders, who are members of the WESP subgroups, has helped develop the promotion work even further.

Welsh Language Skills Policy

During the last year, a new Welsh language skills policy has been implemented by the council which went live at the start of this financial year. This included the adoption of the Association of Language Testers in Europe (ALTE) framework. ALTE is a group of leading European language testing organisations that help people understand examination results and developed a series of "Can Do" statements describing what a person "can do" using the language at a particular level and in a particular context. This adoption of the ALTE framework by Newport City Council has facilitated a means of self-assessing linguistic ability in Welsh throughout the workforce. The new skills policy has also included all posts being advertised as Welsh desirable as a minimum and a Cymraeg Clir policy to help support and develop confidence with all Welsh speakers across the council.

5 Year Promotional Strategy

Our vision for the Welsh language is: *"See, Hear, Learn, Use, Love"* and for everyone in Newport to use, see and hear Welsh as a living language in all parts of life across the city, across all the diverse communities.

The <u>strategy</u> is structured around 3 strategic themes to deliver our vision, it reflects the linguistic profile of the city, our existing Welsh language priorities, and our aspirations for Welsh language growth. Updates on each of the themes can be found below.

Theme 1 Communities and Culture

This theme focusses on increasing awareness of the Welsh language across our communities, normalising Welsh so that it is heard and seen outside of formal environments like school, college or the workplace. This theme seeks to engage non-traditional users of Welsh, including our ethnic minority communities, and broaden our community partnerships. Through this theme, we aspire to widen the partnerships that we work with to promote the Welsh language, build on our work with Newport's Welsh Language Forum and engage with other local stakeholders, like sports teams and public sector partners.

The promotion of bilingualism and Welsh language education has been at the forefront of the work undertaken within the council's education department, through the WEF, the WESP subgroups and outreach by council officers at events across Newport.

We developed campaigns to co-produce video resources with residents and key partner agencies in Newport to promote Welsh medium services and education in the city. These videos highlighted rights around the Welsh language, why Welsh is important to the people of Newport and what options there are for parents and children considering a Welsh medium education. In the process, we were able to promote local <u>Welsh for Adults</u> services and signpost any adults who want to start or increase their skills.

The development of our partnership with the Dragons and Newport County Football was also a feature of work by the council. In the coming year, we aspire to build on the partnerships and continue ensure that Welsh is a fundamental part of key sporting events in the city going forward.

Theme 2 Education

This theme ensures that Welsh language activities across the city align with and support the achievements of targets set out in our WESP. We want all families to be aware of Welsh medium education options across Newport and to understand the benefits of receiving a bilingual education. This theme also focuses on supporting parents of children in Welsh medium education, particularly those who are non-Welsh speakers.

Working within this theme, we have been able to engage successfully with communities across the city to promote Welsh language education options available to parents at events across the city this year, such as:

- Cymraeg i Blant, Malpas
- Cymraeg i Blant, Brynhyfryd Road
- Baby Shower event in Newport Riverfront for expectant parents
- Pill Millennium Centre Welsh language promotion day hosted by Menter Iaith Casnewydd

Theme 3 Employers and Skills

Our final theme considers the example that the council should set as an organisation which values and supports the use of the Welsh language. We want to create an environment where Welsh and English are treated and viewed equally, and staff feel empowered to use and develop their Welsh language skills. We aspire to work with our OneNewport partners to ensure a consistent approach to developing Welsh-speaking workforces that are fit for purpose and work together to address skills gaps across the city.

In line with this theme to create an environment which values and supports the use of Welsh, the council was able to successfully set up pilot informal learning sessions called "Sgwrsio Dros Ginio". The overall aim of the sessions is to develop confidence of people who are learning or have learned Welsh or who are Welsh speakers, but they have lost confidence using the language. It is hoped that this new initiative will assist the workforce by increasing confidence and workplace skills in using the language and ensure that the Welsh Language is an integral part of working in the local authority.



With a different focus each week, the groups, facilitated by the Welsh language officer, choose the direction of the sessions. This is sometimes work related (answering the telephone), sometimes subject based (meeting people, going on holiday, shopping in Welsh, buying groceries), season specific (Winter, Christmas, Spring), or news related.

Meeting on alternate weeks, two groups have been set up as hybrid sessions; affording attendees the option to work face to face or online. Whichever is the most convenient to the learner.

The Mynediad (Entry) and Sylfaen (Foundation) level group for beginners focuses on developing council staffs' confidence to put the Welsh they know or have learned in the classroom into practice, by discussing everyday topics. Delivered bilingually, the sessions encourage staff to use the target language of Welsh as much as possible.

The second group, for more experienced Welsh speakers from Canolradd (Intermediate) to Gloywi (fluent), follows the same format. These sessions are delivered only through the medium of Welsh.

The pilot, running from December 2022 to March 2023, was evaluated by the WLIG in March 2023. It was decided to continue the sessions following a workforce survey to explore any changes that needed to be implemented. This survey will shape the delivery and frequency of the initiative in the coming year and will be reported on in all WLIG meetings and next year's annual report.

Promoting Bilingual Education

Working with colleagues in the Education Team, we have updated the "Becoming Bilingual" parents'

booklet to include the new Welsh primary school Nant Gwenlli. This resource has been the focus of several community engagement events in 2022/23 to connect with parents and discuss options for Welsh language education across the city for their children. By doing so, we were able to initiate discussion with parents about their child's potential journey into Welsh language education.



In addition to the work of our Promotion Officer, the council has also:

- Continued to promote key dates throughout the year to communities and staff, including:
 - a <u>St David's Day</u> film competition to celebrate and showcase why the Welsh language is important to the young learners of Newport. Four schools took part in the competition and the entrants all received a £50 book voucher for their contributions. These films were made available via social media channels and on the council's YouTube channel.



- Running a St David's Day special newsletter for staff which included:
 - details of the new Welsh language commissioner,
 - virtual visits to some of Wales's key tourist sites,
 - a quiz on all things related to Welshness,
 - a bilingual "how to" guide on using Welsh in virtual meetings,
 - links to accessing virtual meeting backgrounds (that indicated that attendees speak or are learning Welsh), and



- a guide to everyday Welsh phrases.
- Drop-in sessions for council staff wishing to set up bilingual meetings on Microsoft Teams following an update of this platform by Microsoft in December 2022.
- a film for <u>Diwrnod Shwmae/Su'mae</u>, which was posted on our social media channels that looked at the importance of starting each conversation in Welsh. The content of this film was recorded at community events in the city and by council staff.
- Produced a series of films for <u>Welsh Language Rights Day</u> which explored how residents and key stakeholders view accessing their Welsh language rights in the city. These films,

made available via our social media platforms, included contributions from secondary school students in Gwent is Coed, parents and children from local Welsh language baby and parent groups, third sector colleagues working in the city and staff working in a variety of council departments.



• Sponsored and supported <u>Gŵyl Newydd</u>, the annual Welsh language festival, this year which

- was hosted at the Riverfront Centre in the city to celebrate
 the Welsh language, culture, Welsh arts and Welshness.
 Taking place in late September 2022, the council had a
 significant role on the day by opening the event with a
 welcome from the council's Welsh language champion.
 Staff from the council also ran an information stand to
 engage with residents and other stakeholders to promote
 the council's Welsh language services, Welsh language
 education options for young learners in the city and job
 vacancies within the council.
- Continued to provide representation on the local forums for Mwy na Geiriau / More than Just Words and an update was provided in the Director's Annual report (2022/23) on our approach to developing an action plan to implement Mwy na Geiriau / More than Just Words.





 We have also provided representation at Fforwm laith, Deddf, the regional Welsh language promotion project meetings and Rhwydiaith. This work has ensured that Newport City Council has had an influence in regard to Welsh language issues on a city-wide basis, across the region and nationally in Wales.

Created a video in partnership with <u>Careers Wales</u> on multilingualism. This short film, prepared for use in schools across the region, explores the benefits of language learning for careers pathways and future employment opportunities. This film was planned and recorded in 2022/23, with a view to future release in 2023/24.

Employment and Skills

The Right Skills Board, which reports to OneNewport, is a partnership forum which aims to ensure that people can access skills and education programmes that support a life well-lived. This aligns with sustainable current and future local employment opportunities, enabling individuals and communities to achieve their potential. This group considers recommendations on how we can work together to promote and support the development of Welsh language skills across the city.

The Council has continued to work with Careers Wales to promote the use of Welsh and has produced a video for use across the country on the professional benefits of multilingualism and how language learning can increase employability and future career opportunities.

4. Monitoring

A. Welsh Competency requirements on new posts (all posts)

The recruiting manager and the Human Resources (HR) team undertake a Welsh Language Assessment for all new or vacant positions advertised via our normal recruitment process using our HR system, iTrent.

No. of new posts 2020/21	No. of new posts 2021/22		21/22	No. of new posts 2022/23		
291	392			412		
2020/21						
Welsh Competency Requirement	t	Number	Percentage of Total			
Essential		6	2.06			
Desirable		17	5.84			
Not necessary		268	92.10			
To be learnt in post		0				
Total		291				
2021/22						
Welsh Competency Requirement		Number	Percentage	of Total		
Essential		11	2.8			
Desirable		43	11			
Not necessary		338	86.2			
To be learnt in post		0	0			
Total		392				
		2022/23				
Welsh Competency Requirement	t	Number	Percentage	of Total		
Essential		15	3.6%			
Desirable		164	39.8%			
Not necessary		231	56.1%			
To be learnt in post		2	0.5%			
Total		412				

From 1st April 2022, Newport City Council launched the Welsh Language Skills Policy. This policy highlighted the Council's commitment to the Welsh language, how it aims to support staff who are learning or already speak Welsh and it supports managers to develop their teams through the recruitment process. We wanted to ensure that we created an environment and culture where both languages are viewed equally, and staff feel empowered to use and develop their Welsh language skills. The policy sets out a cohesive approach to the recruitment, training and development of Welsh learners and speakers across the council, to help ensure the growth of the Welsh language within the workplace.

All vacancies were designated as Welsh desirable as a minimum with all vacancies advertised bilingually. Linguistic ability in Welsh is measured using the ALTE Framework. In 23/24, we will work to further develop the embedding of this approach, ensuring that all job descriptions for advertised roles are available bilingually.

Even though schools are considered in these overall figures for the council, schools are not subject to the same requirements under the Welsh language standards and therefore, have not needed to adopt our Welsh language policy.

We hope to work with all local schools over the next year to encourage creating roles where Welsh language skills are desirable for each role in recruitment within school settings and that all job descriptions for advertised roles are available bilingually.

B. Complaints

Welsh language complaints received from the public are recorded by our Contact Centre via the Council's Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system, meaning that all Welsh language complaints are accurately recorded and shared with appropriate officers to action. Complaints are also a standing agenda item at the council's WLIG meeting where restorative actions and learning are discussed. This includes complaints received from the public, or through the Welsh Language Commissioner's Office.

Complaints related to the Welsh language are commonplace for all organisations that are subject to working within the Welsh language standards. All organisations who work within the standards are legally required to undertake the following:

- keep a record, in relation to each financial year, of the number of complaints it receives relating to its compliance with the standards. (Standard 147)
- keep a copy of any written complaint that it receives that relates to its compliance with the standards with which it is under a duty to comply, which are those standards in its compliance notice. (Standard 148)
- keep a copy of any written complaint it receives that relates to the Welsh language. (Standard 149)
- keep a record of the steps that it has taken in order to ensure compliance with the policy making standards with which it is under a duty to comply. (Standard 150)

In 2022/2023, the Council received 5 complaints in total: 3 direct to the Council and 2 via the Welsh Language Commissioner's office.

Direct Complaints

In relation to the complaints received directly to the Council, one was ongoing from last year's report. The complaint had also been received via the Welsh Language Commissioner and was subject to their complaint's procedure, please see below (Welsh Language Commissioner).

All other complaints are detailed below:

Date	Nature of complaint	Actions taken
07/11/2022	Lack of Welsh names on street plates in the city centre.	Resolved by writing to the resident to explain that the council's approved policy states that all existing street names (street name plates) will (and would) remain in their known language and all new street names would be named bilingually.
09/11/2022	Concerns over traffic signs (with English first and Welsh second) and a lack of Welsh language on Newport Transport's webpages.	Resolved with a letter to the resident explaining that all new signs will be provided bilingually, with Welsh as the first language. It was communicated that this is for any new provision or the maintenance of an existing sign. It was explained in the letter that the council is not responsible for the language options on key partners' websites. Support has been offered to Newport Transport around Welsh language issues.
01/03/2023	Complaint regarding a car parking facility owned by a private company related to the lack of Welsh language service on the payment machines.	Resolved by communicating to the visitor that the car park was not a council owned facility, and that the complaint should be communicated to the company that directly manages the site.

Welsh Language Commissioner

As noted above, the Council received 2 complaints from the Welsh Language Commissioner's office, one complaint was open throughout this year from the previous year.

Date	Nature of complaint	Actions taken
07/01/2022	This complaint was ongoing from the previous year's report. A resident was unhappy about not having received a Welsh language service when contacting the call centre for parking permits. When contacted, the resident was not given a Welsh language option for parking permits.	An intensive programme of training on Welsh language awareness, handling Welsh language requests, internal process of handling Welsh language calls and services. All parking permits updated to bilingual permit booklets. The Welsh language commissioner's office was happy with the comprehensive response to addressing the complaint and an outcome of no further action was communicated early 2023.
15/03/23	Self-assessment on promoting the Welsh language and a mystery shopping exercise to explore access points to the council's services and information. Issues arose related to: • inconsistent links to information (Welsh language job descriptions) on the Welsh side of the council's website, • Welsh language calls to call centre not being handled in line with the standards, • some messaging on the council's social media platforms	A comprehensive action plan was put together towards the end of 2022/23 and will be reported on fully in the next annual report.

falling outside of the standards.

5. Training

Under Standard 128, the authority is mandated to offer training programmes through the medium of Welsh on the following courses:

- Health and safety for managers
- Corporate induction
- Performance management
- Corporate management induction

Of the courses offered in Welsh, none were requested by members of staff, as such attendance was 0% for staff completing these courses through the medium of Welsh.

Welsh Language Training

The delivery of Welsh language training resumed this year by the local Welsh for Adults services in Coleg Gwent. Internal Welsh language awareness training continued to be delivered online.

We have revised our Welsh language videos that are now an integral part of the council's Welsh language awareness session.

Number of attendees for Welsh language training sessions

Course Title	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23
Improvers Course for Welsh Speakers	2	-	0
Welsh at Work 90-minute Taster	7	-	13
Welsh Mynediad/Entry Level 30-week	0	31	27
course (Year 1)			
Welsh Mynediad/Entry Level 30-week	0	11	13
course (Year 2)			
Welsh Sylfaen/Foundation Level 30-	0	2	3
week course (Year 1)			
Welsh Sylfaen/Foundation Level 30-		7	2
week course (Year 2)			
Canolradd – Year 1		2	5
Canolradd – Year 2		6	1
Uwch 1	0	0	2
Uwch 2	0	0	1
Gloywi	0	0	1
Say Something in Welsh App	30	30	0

Number of staff who attended Welsh Language Awareness sessions.

Course Title	2020/2021	2021/2022	2022/2023
Welsh Language Awareness	9	28	99

6. Welsh Language Skills of Employees (as of 31/03/21)

Headcount	Headcount	Headcount
2020/21	2021/2022	2022/2023
5865	5980	5958

During previous reporting periods, the council was able to compare, and contrast language ability developments per service area. Due to a recent restructure, new departments being created, and departments merged, comparing previous tables for Welsh language skills per service area for this year's report is unfeasible. Adding to this, the newly adopted ALTE framework for Welsh language ability, differs slightly to the previous method of assessing linguistic skills. As a result of both recent changes, the data below refers to this year only, with the new categories of Reading, Spoken/Listening and Writing being considered for the report. This year's data will be used to benchmark performance for future years.

	No. of E	mployees iles					
Welsh Competency	None	Level 1 / Entry	Level 2 / Foundation	Level 3 / Intermediate	Level 4 / Advanced	Level 5	No Record
Reading	2382	12391	9	219	197	18	4064
Spoken/ Listening	2116	1483	17	253	210	19	4098
Writing	2407	1173	9	209	179	17	3965
Percentage of headcount	38.51%	21.75%	0.20%	3.81%	3.27%	0.30%	

Establishment List*

(*This performance measure is reliant upon staff members self-assessing their Welsh language skills within their Employee Self-Service account and therefore may not be complete. We are working with HR colleagues to remind all staff to complete this section in their accounts and a report will be provided at service area level to ask managers to encourage their teams to complete the self-assessment).

By Service Area:

Adult and Community Services

		dult and Co 2022/23	ommunity Servio				
Welsh	None	Level 1 /	Level 2 /	Level 4 /	Level	No	
Competency		Entry	Foundation	Advanced	5	Record	
Reading	175	28	-	3	4	-	210

Spoken/	161	38	-	5	4	-	208
Spoken/ Listening							
Writing	172	21	-	2	4	-	199

Children and Young People Services

		Children an ees by Scoi	d Young People re 2022/23					
Welsh	None	Level 1 /	Level 2 /	Level 4 /	Level	No		
Competency		Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record	
Reading	169	44	1	6	8	1	229	
Spoken/	157	58	2	9	10	1	237	
Listening								
Writing	168	34	2	7	9	1	221	
People, Policy and Transformation								

People, Policy and Transformation

		eople, Polic es by Score					
Welsh	None	Level 1 /	Level 2 /	Level 4 /	Level	No	
Competency		Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record
Reading	64	10	-	3	2	1	80
Spoken/	57	18	-	3	2	1	81
Listening							
Writing	62	9	-	3	2	1	77

Regeneration and Economic Development

			n and Economicore 2022/23				
Welsh	None	ne Level 1 Level 2 / Level 3 /				Level	No
Competency		/ Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record
Reading	68	15	-	1	3	-	87
Spoken/	55	24	-	1	4	-	84
Listening							
Writing	64	12	-	2	2	-	80

Schools Employees

	No. of S	Schools Em	ployees by Scor				
Welsh	None	Level 1	Level 2 /	Level 4 /	Level	No	
Competency		/ Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record
Reading	1278	952	Q	182	148	14	2582

Spoken/ Listening	1114	1090	15	210	157	15	2601
Writing	1294	928	7	168	153	13	2545

Strategic Directors

	No. of S	trategic Di	rectors by Scor				
Welsh	None	Level 1	Level 2 /	Level 3 /	Level 4 /	Level	No
Competency		/ Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record
Reading	2	1	-	-	-	-	3
Spoken/	2	1	-	-	-	-	3
Listening							
Writing	3	-	-	-	-	-	3

Law and Regulation

	No. of La 2022/23		gulation Emplo				
Welsh	None	Level 1	Level 2 /	Level 3 /	Level 4 /	Level	No
Competency		/ Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record
Reading	54	13	-	2	4	-	73
Spoken/	49	19	-	2	4	-	74
Listening							
Writing	25656	11	-	2	3	-	72

Education

	No. of E	ducation E	mployees by So				
Welsh	None	Level 1	Level 2 /	Level 3 /	Level 4 /	Level	No
Competency		/ Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record
Reading	78	32	-	8	5	1	124
Spoken/	68	42	-	8	5	1	124
Listening							
Writing	80	26	-	7	4	1	118

Environment and Public Protection

			it and Public Pr s by Score 2022				
Welsh	None	Level 1	Level 2 / Foundation	Level 4 /	Level	No	
Competency		/ Entry	Foundation	Advanced	5	Record	
Reading	167	19	-	4	8	1	199
Spoken/	169	27	-	4	9	1	201
Listening							
Writing	166	16	-	5	6	1	194

Finance

	No. of F 2022/23		vices Employee				
Welsh	None	Level 1	Level 2 /	Level 3 /	Level 4 /	Level	N°
Competency		/ Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record
Reading	94	32	-	2	2	-	130
Spoken/	90	34	-	2	2	-	128
Listening							
Writing	92	30	-	1	2	-	125

Housing and Communities

			l Communities re 2022/23				
Welsh	None	None Level 1 Level 2 / Level 3 / L				Level	No
Competency		/ Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record
Reading	69	17	-	1	4	-	91
Spoken/	58	24	-	2	3	-	88
Listening							
Writing	69	11	-	3	2	-	85

Infrastructure

	No. of Ir 2022/23		re Employees k				
Welsh	None	Level 1	Level 2 /	Level 3 /	Level 4 /	Level	No
Competency		/ Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record
Reading	60	10	-	-	5	-	75
Spoken/	57	13	-	-	5	-	75
Listening							
Writing	58	10	-	1	4	-	73

Prevention and Inclusion

		revention a e 2022/23	and Inclusion				
Welsh	None	Level 1	Level 2 /	Level 3 /	Level 4 /	Level	No
Competency		/ Entry	Foundation	Intermediate	Advanced	5	Record
Reading	122	75	-	7	5	-	209
Spoken/	105	104	-	8	5	-	222
Listening							
Writing	122	65	-	8	6	-	201

* - = No record refers to those staff that have not indicated their Welsh language ability

7. Overview of work against Standards

Service Delivery Standards

The review of our compliance with Service Delivery Standards is ongoing and features as a regular part of the WLIG meeting agenda items. This annual report, also considered by Scrutiny Committee is also an important part of this monitoring work. Key issues and complaints are also escalated to the executive team.

The authority continues to demonstrate positive progress, particularly through the positive attitude displayed towards the Welsh language by staff. Consistency of service delivery across the organisation still proves challenging, however, as Service Delivery Standards relate to frontline services for members of the public, these Standards will remain a priority for us, and within our corporate action plan. Staffing and recruitment continue to be difficult and present the authority with significant challenges in a continuation of service delivery. As a way of addressing this, we are working with local schools to attract Welsh speaking applicants for positions.

Policy Making Standards

In the last reporting period, Newport City Council updated our Fairness and Equality Impact Assessments (FEIA) based on the Welsh Language Commissioner's guidance on Policy Making Standards. This integrated impact assessment now supports us in ensuring the Welsh Language is not treated less favourably.

Assessments against all new, revised or reviewed policies are ongoing, and when developing proposals and policies, Council officers must consider compliance with Welsh Language Standards and the impact on the Welsh Language and Welsh speakers, including the opportunities to use Welsh. New FEIA training has been developed and will be made more broadly available in the next period.

Operational Standards

Our HR department continues to work to ensure compliance with Operational Standards across several business areas. A subgroup of the Welsh Language Implementation Group previously drafted a new Welsh Language Skills Policy which was implemented from April 2022. Training the workforce on Welsh language issues is a top priority for Newport City Council to ensure we offer optimum Welsh language services throughout all of our access points. From awareness raising around the Welsh language standards, how they shape our services and how we must operate, through to increasing accessibility for all service areas to Welsh language sessions. This Welsh language awareness course is mandatory for all staff. Furthermore, the Sgwrsio Dros Ginio project encourages all staff to use the Welsh skills they have acquired and to put this into use in everyday situations. Consequently, this has increased the use of the Welsh language within the council, and it continues to build on the workforce's confidence to enrich Welsh language services for our citizens.

Promotion Standards

Our new <u>5 year Promotion Strategy</u> is inclusive and accessible to all of Newport's diverse communities. It aims to bring together the work with stakeholders, other council service areas and the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2022-2032. It also drives the inclusion of the Welsh language with the Right Skills Board and our OneNewport partners to ensure consistency in the way Welsh is monitored as a workplace skill. Within the Strategy we also aim to ensure the people of Newport can, *"see, hear, learn, use and love"* the Welsh language. The Council also continues to have a Welsh Language Elected Member Champion (Councillor John Harris for the year 2022-2023) who supports the promotion of Welsh language both across the city and Council. The Council is a

member of the Fforwm laith, co-ordinated by <u>Menter laith Casnewydd</u>, and attended by key Welsh language stakeholders.

Record Keeping

The Council has a Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system, which has improved the way that we record complaints relating to Welsh language and customer information about language choice. The Council use the HR system, iTrent, to monitor and keep records on the Welsh language skills of employees, attendance at relevant training courses and Welsh language assessment of vacant posts.

Performance Monitoring

The Council continues to review the way in which it monitors the implementation of Standards across the organisation. An Implementation Plan, Organisational Plan and Individual Service Plans for specific Welsh Language Standards owned by an identifiable service area have been developed. The delivery of these plans is monitored by the WLIG and key performance indicators included in our corporate performance management system. This allows for organisational and service area level data to be easily accessed and monitored. Welsh language performance measures are already included within the Council's performance and risk management framework which is reported on quarterly and within our corporate annual report.

8. Looking Forward to 2023/2024

In 2023/24, we aim to carry over several priorities which were previously identified, including:

- Engaging with all of Newport's diverse communities to promote the Welsh language, raise awareness and visibility of the language and continue to develop Welsh medium education and the inclusivity of the language.
- Working with our refugee, migrant, and minority ethnic communities to better embed Welsh language as part of a shared sense of identity across the city, particularly in the context of the development of our fourth Welsh medium primary school.
- Building on the creative partnership arrangements developed outside the public and voluntary sector to better raise the profile of the Welsh language across Newport with opportunities at the Dragons rugby and Newport County AFC
- Delivering a cohesive approach to Welsh language skills development across our OneNewport partners through the Right Skills Board
- Offer Welsh language courses for lapsed speakers, or those that need a confidence boost.

We have also identified several new priorities, including:

- Cymraeg Gwaith, a new grant scheme that will enable the council to access an innovative tailored approach to Welsh language teaching within the organisation that will afford the council:
 - All of the Cymraeg i Oedolion curriculum
 - Bespoke informal learning sessions.
 - Intensive language learning sessions (online and at the Nant Gwrtheyrn national centre for learning Welsh).
 - Tailored one to one support for staff needing to address audiences in Welsh.
 - \circ $\;$ A series of online learning modules that are tailored for specific sectors.

- An even greater focus on recruitment, retention and development of Welsh speakers across all service areas within the council, and
- Facilitating and supporting events throughout the year and looking at the cross-cutting themes around equality, diversity and inclusion.

For further information about our Welsh language work, please contact nccequality@newport.gov.uk

Appendix One

Feedback from some of the projects that accessed the Welsh in the Community Grants

Welsh Roman Legion Museum

A project to create a new Welsh language learning resource for the museum created alongside the Welsh Language Centre to ensure all levels of learners are supported and to deliver an event for families, including activities to support children in Welsh-medium schools and to promote the language to non-Welsh speaking children.

Grant was accessed for: Writing a Learning Welsh resource for adults, planning, printing, event for families, staff time.

"Outcomes: A series of 'Triniaeth a Meddyginiaeth Rhufeinig / Lotions & Potions' events delivered at the National Roman Museum during the summer of 2022.A resource developed for adult learners to explore historic Caerleon.

Events and resource promoted throughout Southeast Wales.

The 'Triniaeth a Meddyginiaeth Rhufeinig /Lotions & Potions' event was delivered by a Roman costumed facilitator every Friday throughout August at 11am-1pm & 2-4pm. The event was hosted in the Pegasus centre located in the Roman Garden at the Museum.

Promotion

Events and resources were promoted by working in partnership with Menter Iaith Casnewydd and local Fusion Networks to target local Welsh language schools and families. The event was also promoted as part of the National 'Summer of Fun' campaign -which was heavily promoted throughout Wales.

We used a paid for promotion campaign on Facebook. We targeted Welsh learners in Southeast Wales. There was a positive reaction and good level of engagement to the posts. Menter laith shared our posts and contacted local Welsh language primary schools before the summer holidays to promote the event. They also shared and created social media content about the event. Emails were sent out to local Fusion networks in Newport, Caerphilly and Cwmbran to promote this free activity. Activities were promoted on the Museum Website.

Uptake of Welsh learners

The event was very popular and busy with families and visitors of all ages every day it was offered. However, we would have hoped for more Welsh speakers and learners to attend the event, however despite our best efforts to promote the event, together with partners, the numbers of Welsh learners attending the event was low. Each day, we only had two or three Welsh language families attending the event. Menter laith explained that take up to events in the Newport area is fairly low. Those that did attend were very grateful to participate in Welsh and improve their Welsh.

The event raised the profile of the Welsh language to visitors from the rest of the UK and non-Welsh speakers in Wales in a fun and engaging way. All participants went away with their own Welsh vocabulary sheets.

Non-Welsh speaking staff at the National Roman Legion Museum also had the opportunity to practice and gain confidence in using Welsh.

Quote from a family:

Over the summer I went to Caerleon with my two granddaughters who are 5 and 7 years old. They are pupils of a local Welsh School. We went into the Museum and saw a Roman doctor with all kinds of medicines. It was great for the grandchildren to have the opportunity to speak Welsh outside the school and I would like to thank the organisers.

Bye for now."

Y Groes Goch Brydeinig/The British Red Cross

To support and increase the use, awareness, and visibility of the Welsh language by specifically targeting refugees/asylum seekers and wider BAME community by hosting a family friendly day of events. With events such as: Welsh taster sessions, Welsh language performances, community entertainers, talks and workshops by high profile Welsh speaking BAME community members to showcase the use of the language from a multicultural perspective.

Grant was accessed for: Sound and lighting technician, ushers, studios, resources for families, officer time, artists/speakers, food.

"A Welsh Festival for Everyone was held on 25.06.22 at Riverfront Theatre. The day was organized by The British Red Cross and Dysgu Cymraeg Gwent and the theatre collaborated very well with us and gave full support to the event. There were stalls from several organisations that supported the day there including Menter Newport, the Red Cross Voices Network, Art on the Front, Dysgu Cymraeg Gwent, Dysgu Welsh Cardiff and Welsh for Children and a face painting stall which was very busy throughout the day. Fitness sessions were held for the family, crafts for children, Ti and Fi sessions, Croeso i Bawb tasting lessons, a panel of guest speakers including Seren Jones, Ameer Davies-Rana and Shereen Williams, Welsh music by Eirian Conlon and Sudanese dance by a local group. A creche was available all day with the support of 'Yellow Bunnies Day Care' so that parents could enjoy tasting and fitness sessions without the children. Lunch was provided by the Alice Foundation.

The day itself was very successful, raising awareness of the language in the community and a Croeso i Bawb class was started through the Red Cross Voices Network as a result of the day. There were several families there with small children learning about education through the Welsh language so the hope is that the families there will consider sending their children to the Welsh language schools when the time comes."

Hungarian Cultural Community in Newport

The project objective is to celebrate and preserve the Hungarian and Welsh language in Newport and build links between the communities, teaching the community's roots and traditions so that it can be passed onto future generations and to bridge the Hungarian and Welsh communities.

Grant was accessed for: Rent, board-games/toys/shipping, food, cleaning products, travel costs, Welsh-English interpreter.

"We were delighted for the opportunity with this grant, which was given to us, because we think it is important for our children to learn the Welsh language and traditions, so they can deepen their knowledge of this area where they live.

It was also a great opportunity for our community to open up to Welsh children and to show them our culture too.

Children love to play, it's a common language, so in the first round, thanks to the grant, we launched a series of events where Hungarian children who came to our school could invite their little Welsh friends and family.

Together with Hungarian, English and Welsh teachers, we set up a number of small activities and games to deepen their knowledge of the three languages. The children learned new words through play and took the word cards home with them each time. The rest of the day, they played board games with us, where they also played a lot of word games, deepening the knowledge they had learned that day. The event was held several times and was a growing success.

So, we decided to continue it next year and, in addition to expanding their vocabulary, introduce them to traditional dances, food and sights.

Thank you for allowing us to offer the children such an experience by being awarded the grant."

Gaer Community Family Learning Organization

To run interactive and inclusive workshops for the Gaer Families and Community to learn about Welsh culture whilst learning incidental and conversational Welsh and create a social environment for people to naturally develop Welsh language skills.

They will also have a 'Taste of Wales' project for local families linked to Gaer Primary School to learn and practice the basics of the language in a relaxed environment. Offering Welsh through activities allows the Gaer's diverse cultures to get involved and learn about the culture and language.

Grant was accessed for: Resources, transport, accompanist, studio recording, venue hire, cooking ingredients, bilingual documentary, consumables.

"Thanks to the Welsh in the Community grant received from Newport City Council, we have been able to deliver a rich and cultural 'Taste of Wales' project to our family community in the Gaer through arts, crafts, music and food.

The project has enabled us to learn and embed incidental Welsh through lots of quality workshops in partnership with local providers and using local amenities and venues.

Being Welsh is more than learning the language, it is a full and rich heritage filled with pride and tradition. Our project focussed on learning about some of our traditional cuisines, crafts, song and folk dancing!

We believe that the project has created an extended social hub for learning bilingually and with a real focus and understanding on Wales. Our rich tapestry of learning has been documented and is available for you to use as evidence.

Here is the link to our documentary: <u>https://youtu.be/8u9AMrLkxVU</u> "

Newport Live

Project Aims: Each Newport Live employee will be provided with Welsh language flashcards to learn useful words/phrases to be used in the working environment and accompanied by online training videos.

The project will also trial 2 musical projects. The first being a Welsh language music night at the Riverfront with local artists and schools performing, with a mix of Welsh and non-Welsh speaking audience. The second would be a Welsh medium choir on St Dwynwen's Day, consisting of 6 weekly choir practice sessions, thus providing an opportunity for local people to develop their knowledge of Welsh culture.

There will also be opportunities for children to participate in creative workshops through the medium of Welsh.

Grant was accessed for: Welsh language flashcards, choir project, music night, young people's holiday workshops.

"*Canu Casnewydd* - "Operasonic" were commissioned to deliver an 8-week programme that delivered a fun and friendly environment for the learning of traditional Welsh songs.

Choir rehearsals were open to all at the Riverfront Theatre. Both Welsh speakers and enthusiastic learners participated.

At the end of the project, the newly formed choir gave a performance of the songs in the atrium area of the Riverfront on St Davids Day 2022. This performance preceded a theatrical performance of the stage play "Carwyn". Creating a Welsh themed evening of entertainment.

30+ individuals attended the Choir practice sessions and performance.

The video of the Canu Casnewydd performance on St Davids Day 2022 at the Riverfront Theatre can be viewed through the following link. <u>https://fb.watch/bv8DnjdtNY/</u>.

Clwb Creadigol - The Riverfront Team delivered Welsh language arts sessions through the medium of Welsh at The Riverfront Theatre & Arts Centre.

This allowed young people to engage in arts and craft activities, socialise in Welsh and also formed part of the audio recordings for our Wonderland immersive experience in the Spring of 2022.

Advert for the Clwb Creadigol sessions.



Welsh Flashcards for approximately 450 staff - The project is currently being rolled out across the organisation. These cards will sit alongside educational videos demonstrating the pronunciation and context of the phrases.

Image of the Welsh Flashcards produced for Newport Live Staff



Every member of staff (Approx 450) will be issued with a set of Flashcards to support their Welsh Language Skills development. "

Menter laith Casnewydd

To create and run Welsh language awareness sessions, by hosting community awareness sessions online and face-to-face specifically targeting the Pillgwenlly area of Newport. The project will see a series of short drop-in sessions during the week and at the weekend ensuring that people with children are welcome. We provide activities for the children.

The aim of the project is to raise the interest in Welsh medium education in the region and promote the benefits of using Welsh to parents of children in English-medium schools.

Menter laith Casnewydd also intend to host people from all backgrounds and parts of society who have not had the opportunity to learn Welsh due to historical trends.

Grant was accessed for: Consult with partners, develop awareness materials, provide knowledge questionnaires, install/promote awareness resource on website, organize face-to-face awareness sessions, rent, sessions, play materials, data analysis.

"We held a highly successful St. David's Day celebration event at the Pillgwenlly Millennium Centre on Saturday afternoon, 3pm – 5pm on the 4th of March. Our partners were invited to be involved, with stalls for Cymraeg i Blant, RHAG, Stwff and Newport City Council. This location was specifically chosen as Pillgwenlly is where Newport's newest Welsh school will be located once the construction work has been completed.

Over 200 local residents attended the event. The event took place on a Saturday afternoon, with visiting community members celebrating the Welsh language and culture. During the event, we had the opportunity, with our partners, to inform attendees about Welsh education opportunities and talk about the new school. The families and their young children from the community were invited to participate in a range of Welsh activities on the day; from craft activities to sampling Welsh cakes and enjoying Welsh music (performed by a local Welsh language band). Attendance and engagement at the event exceeded expectations and several of the partners reported that they had conversations and discussions with individuals who were completely unaware of Welsh language education (including families who had moved to Newport from Bristol) and that they were interested in finding out more information after the event. The event was advertised on social media pages for the area and on our own social media channels."

Poster for the event



Eitem Agenda 6

Scrutiny Report



Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Part 1

Date: June 2023

Subject Scrutiny Adviser Report

Author Scrutiny Adviser

The following people have been invited to attend for this item:

Invitee:	Role
Samantha Schanzer (Scrutiny Adviser)	Present the Committee with the Scrutiny Adviser Report for discussion and update the Committee on any changes.

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations

Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked to:

1. Action Plan

Consider the Actions from previous meetings (Appendix 1):

- Note the responses for the actions;
- Determine if any further information / action is required;
- Agree to receive an update on outstanding issues at the next meeting.

2. Committee's Work Programme:

Consider the Committee's Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 2):

- Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next Committee meeting?
- Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics?
- Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

2 Context

Background

Action Sheet

2.1 Attached at **Appendix 1** is the Action Sheet from the Committee meetings. The updated completed actions are included in the table.

Tudalen 45

2.2 Any actions that do not have a response will be included on the Action Sheet at the next meeting to ensure that the Committee can keep track of outstanding actions.

Forward Work Programme

- 2.3 Attached at **Appendix 2** is the Draft Forward Work Programme for the year 2023-24.
- 2.4 The purpose of a Forward Work Programme is to help ensure Councillors achieve organisation and focus in the undertaking of enquiries through the Overview and Scrutiny function. Effective work programming is essential to ensure that the work of Overview and Scrutiny makes a positive impact upon the Council's delivery of services.
- 2.4 Further information about the work programming process, including the procedures for referring new business to the programme, can be found in our Scrutiny Handbook on the Council's Scrutiny webpages (www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny).
- 2.5 The Centre for Public Scrutiny's Good Scrutiny Guide recognises the importance of the forward work programme. In order to 'lead and own the process', it states that Councillors should have ownership of their Committee's work programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and evaluating it. The Good Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny workload should be co-ordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken in a timely and well-planned manner.

3 Information Submitted to the Committee

3.1 The following information is attached:

Appendix 1: Action Sheet from Previous Meetings; Appendix 2: Draft Forward Work Programme Appendix 3: Scrutiny Topic Referral

4. Suggested Areas of Focus

Role of the Committee

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to: **Action Sheet from Previous Meetings - Appendix 1** • Consider the responses to the actions from the meeting; o Are you satisfied that you have received the necessary information? • Are there any further issues arising from the responses that you would like to raise? • For the actions that do not have responses – these actions will be rolled over to the next meeting and reported back to the Committee. **Draft Forward Work Programme - Appendix 2** Consider: • Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next Committee meeting? • Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics? o Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request? **Scrutiny Topic Referral - Appendix 3** Consider: • Does the referral meet the criteria as set out within the referral form? • Does the referral fit with the priorities within the work programme? • Should this referral be accepted or rejected based on the criteria and other information? If accepted, which Scrutiny committee is best placed to deal with this referral 0 e.g. Performance Scrutiny Committee for Place, People or Partnerships or **Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee?**

• How should this piece of work be undertaken?

Section B – Supporting Information

5 Supporting Information

- 5.1 The Corporate Assessment, and the subsequent <u>follow up assessment</u> provide background information on the importance of good work programming. Specific reference is made to the need to align the Cabinet and Scrutiny work programmes to ensure the value of the Scrutiny Function is maximised.
- 5.2 The latest Cabinet work programme was approved by the Cabinet on a monthly basis for the next 12 months and includes the list of reports scheduled for consideration. Effective forward planning by both Cabinet and Scrutiny needs to be coordinated and integrated in relation to certain reports to ensure proper consultation takes place before a decision is taken. A link to the Cabinet work programme is provided <u>here</u> to the Committee as part of this report, to enable the Committee to ensure that the work programmes continue to reflect key decisions being made by the Cabinet.

6. Links to Council Policies and Priorities

6.1 Having proper work programming procedures in place ensures that the work of Overview and Scrutiny makes a positive impact upon the Council's delivery of services, contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and ensures that work can be undertaken in a timely and well-planned manner.

6.2 This report relates to the Actions from Committee's which support the achievement of the Scrutiny Committee, in accordance with the Law and Regulation Service Plan, Objectives, Actions and Measures and the Wellbeing objectives:

Well-being Objective	1 – Economy, Education and Skills	2 – Newport's Environment and Infrastructure	3 – Preventative and Equitable Community and Social Care	4 – An Inclusive, Fair and Sustainable Council
Aims:	Newport is a thriving and growing city that offers excellent education and aspires to provide opportunities for all.	A city that seeks to protect and enhance our environment whilst reducing our carbon footprint and preparing for a sustainable and digital future.	Newport is a supportive city where communities and care are at the heart of what we do.	Newport City Council is an inclusive organisation that places social value, fairness and sustainability at its core.

7 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act

7.1 The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 which came into force in April 2016 sets the context for the move towards long term planning of services.

7.2 General questions

- How is this area / policy affected by the new legislation?
- How will this decision / policy / proposal impact upon future generations? What is the long term impact?
- What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered?
- Evidence from Community Profiles / other data?
- Evidence of links to Wellbeing Assessment / Objectives / Plan?

7.3 Wellbeing Goals

- How are the Wellbeing goals reflected in the policy / proposal / action?
 - A prosperous Wales
 - A resilient Wales
 - o A healthier Wales
 - A more equal Wales
 - A Wales of cohesive communities
 - o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
 - A globally responsible Wales

7.4 Sustainable Development Principles

• Does the report / proposal demonstrate how as an authority we are working in accordance with the sustainable development principles from the act when planning services?

o Long Term

The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to also meet long-term needs

- Prevention How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet their objectives
- o Integration

Considering how the public body's well-being objectives may impact upon each of the well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies

• Collaboration

Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that could help the body to meet its well-being objectives

• Involvement

The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals, and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves.

8 Background Papers

- <u>The Essentials Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)</u>
- Corporate Plan 2022-2027
- The Corporate Assessment and <u>follow up assessment</u>.

Report Completed: June 2023

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ACTION SHEET

	Agenda Item	Action	Responsibility	Outcome
1	Conclusion of Committee reports	Send comments and recommendations to officers	Samantha Schanzer	Complete
2	Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy	Provide an answer regarding definitive numbers of charging points in Newport or highlight work being done to collect this	Ross Cudlipp	Chased – 15.06.23
3	Minutes of the Previous Meeting	Chase a response from the University	Samantha Schanzer	Raised with Manager – 08.06.23





Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee Draft Work Programme: June 2023 to May 2024

Meeting	Agenda Items
02/06/2023	Corporate Safeguarding Annual Report
	EV Charging Strategy
	Consultation Update (Information only)
23/06/2023	Welsh Language Annual Report
28/07/2023	Information Risk Report
	Climate Change Annual Report
08/09/2023	Annual Corporate Wellbeing Self Assessment
	Annual Digital Strategy Report
29/09/2023	 Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report
27/10/2023	 Transformation Plan / Budget Consultation Plans / Development of MTFP
	 Air Quality Action Plan
01/12/2023	Scrutiny Annual Report
19/01/2024	MTFP and Revenue Budget – Consultee Meeting
08/03/2024	• TBD
26/04/2024	• TBD